
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

TENTH SESSION 
Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 49: 

Page 

Report of the Special Committee on Review of Adminis-
trative Tribunal Judgements. . . . . . . . . . . 35 

Chairman: Mr. Hans ENGEN (Norway). 

AGENDA ITEM 49 

Report of the Special Committee on Review of 
Administrative Tribunal Judgements (A/2909, 
A/2917 and Add.l and 2, A/C.S/634, A/C.5/ 
L.335 and Add.l) 

1. The CHA IRl\IAN recalled the terms of General 
Assembly resolution 888 B (IX), which had established 
a Special Committee to consider all aspects of the ques-
tion of the establishment of a procedure for the review 
of judgements of the United Nations Administrative 
Tribunal. The report of that Committee was now before 
the Fifth Committee as document A/2909. In part IV, 
the Special Committee recommended to the General As-
sembly for its consideration two new draft articles for 
incorporation in the Statute of the Administrative Tri-
bunal. Other proposals which had been considered by 
the Committee, the written views of some Member 
States and the working papers submitted to the Com-
mittee by the Secretary-General were to be found in the 
annexes to the report. In addition to the views of the 
Staff Council, which were to be found in annex IV, the 
Secretary-General had, at the request of the Staff Coun-
cil, transmitted its statement on the report of the Spe-
cial Committee (A/C.S/634) for the information of 
members of the Fifth Committee. 
2. The Committee also had before it a draft resolution 
(A/C.SjL.335) sponsored by eight Powers, Pakistan 
having asked for its name to be added to the list of 
sponsors appearing at the head of the document (A/ 
C.SjL.335j Add.1). 
3. The SECRETARY -GENERAL made some obser-
vations concerning the proposals for a review of Admi-
nistrative Tribunal judgements which were contained in 
the Special Committee's report. 1 

4. Lord FAIRFAX (United Kingdom) wished to ex-
plain his Government's attitude to the recommendations 
appearing in part IV of the Special Committee's report 
and taken up in the joint draft resolution before the 
Committee. He would suggest, in passing, that the Com-
mittee should confine itself to a consideration of those 
recommendations and not reopen a discussion of other 
possible solutions, which had been fully examined by 
the Special Committee. His Government's primary con-
cern was that the United Nations staff should be pro-
vided with a system of established and impartial jus-

1 The complete text of the Secretary-General's statement will 
be found in document A/C.S/635. 

35 

FIFTH COMMITTEE, 493rd 
MEETING 

Monday, 17 October 1955, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

New York 

tice. The opinion had been expressed that decisions of 
the Administrative Tribunal might sometimes call for 
review and it was true that there had been cases in the 
past where the Tribunal's judgements had caused grave 
dissatisfaction. The General Assemblv had, at its ninth 
session, accepted judicial review in ·principle ( resolu-
tion 888 B (IX)) ; his delegation had at that time agreed 
to co-operate in devising a review procedure provided 
that judicial impartiality was not impaired, the basic 
rights of the staff were respected and the status and effi-
C<<cy of the Administrative Tribunal were maintained. 
Its sole anxiety now was to see a satisfactory procedure 
adopted and put into effect at the earliest possible date. 
5. The Committee should bear in mind the fact that 
the International Labour Organisation had already 
found it desirable to establish a review procedure for 
judgements of its Administrative Tribunal, an organ 
with functions very similar to those of the United Na-
tions Administrative Tribunal, and that the jurisdiction 
of the ILO Tribunal had been extended to five other 
specialized agencies of the United Nations, whose Exe-
cutive Boards were empowered to seek a review of deci-
sions of that Tribunal in cases affecting members of 
their staffs. Thus a precedent had already been estab-
lished in the matter and accepted by the majority of 
Members of the United Nations. 

6. The review procedure recommended by the Special 
Committee was admittedly a compromise, but the United 
Kingdom, which had been one of its sponsors, consi-
dered that it satisfied the essential requirements for a 
review procedure, namely, that it should be conducted 
by an impartial judicial body of the highest standing 
which should be prompt in its actions and conclusive in 
its decisions. The procedure recommended incorporated 
two of the basic features of that of the ILO : first, the 
use of the advisory opinion procedure of the Internatio-
nal Court of Justice, and secondly, the provision that 
the opinion of the Court should be sought by an organ 
of the United Nations, in the present case a committee 
specially authorized for the purpose under paragraph 2 
of Article 96 of the Charter. 

7. Paragraph 1 of the proposed new article 11 of the 
Statute of the Tribunal provided that a Member State, 
the Secretary-General or the staff member concerned 
could apply to the committee to request an advisory opi-
nion of the Court. The committee, essentially a screening 
committee for applications for review, would then de-
cide, under paragraph 2 of the article, whether there was 
a substantial basis for the application and, if it found 
that to be so, would request the International Court to 
give an opinion. 

8. The Special Committee had found that there were 
three basic issues before it in the matter of the estab-
lishment of a review procedure: the scope or grounds 
of review, the choice of a reviewing body, and the ques-
6on of who should have the right to initiate a review. 

AjC.SjSR.493 



General Assembly- Tenth Session -Fifth Committee 

9. \Vith regard to the scope of review, it had been 
generally agreed that there should be no review on ques-
tions of fact and that, as the Secretary-General himself 
had suggested, review should be exceptional only and 
should not be applied to all cases as a matter of course. 
Opinion had been divided, however, on whether the 
scope of review should be confined to the two grounds 
set forth in article 12 of the Statute of the ILO Tribu-
nal. The recommendation in the report was a compro-
mise: it adopted the two grounds in the ILO Tribu-
nal's Statute and added a third- alleged error on a 
question of law relating to the provisions of the Charter. 
It had been felt that the third ground was adequate to 
cover cases where the Tribunal, in interpreting and 
applying some of the Staff Regulations, did so in a man-
ner which might be considered inconsistent with the 
provisions of the Charter, especially of Chapter XV. 
10. On the second issue, the choice of a reviewing 
body, the Special Committee had agreed that the review-
ing tribunal should be an independent, permanent judi-
cial body of obviously higher authority and prestige than 
the Administrative Tribunal itself; the International 
Court of Justice, as the principal judicial organ of the 
United Nations, had presented itself as the obvious 
choice. Doubt had been expressed, however, whether the 
International Court was competent to undertake such a 
function. That was for the Court itself to decide, but 
his delegation felt that the provision for its advisory 
opinion procedure gave it the necessary competence. 
Another objection raised to the choice of the Interna-
tional Court had been that a. staff member, unlike a 
Member State or the Secretary-General, could not ap-
pear before it. That was certainly a disability, but para-
graph 2 of the proposed article 11 expressly provided 
that the written views of the person concerned should be 
transmitted to the Court by the Secretary-General. 
Equality of rights before the Court could be maintained 
if Member States and the Secretary··General were to 
refrain from presenting oral statements to it and the 
joint draft resolution before the Committee contained a 
recommendation on that point. A further objection had 
been that the prestige of the Court might be lowered if 
it were asked to deal with a great number of staff cases. 
That objection had been met by limiting review to ex-
ceptional cases. 
11. In view of the objections raised to the use of the 
International Court, the Special Committee had consi-
dered the possibility of establishing a new review body 
but it had found that there would be serious practical 
and financial obstacles in the way of creating a new 
body of sufficient authority and prestige. 
12. On the third issue- namely, who should have the 
right to initiate a review- it was obvious that the right 
should be accorded to the Secretary-General and to the 
staff member concerned. Nevertheless, Member States, 
too, had a real interest in the judgements of the Tribu-
nal and the Special Committee had therefore recom-
mended that review might be undertaken at the request 
of a Member State. The objection that that might lead 
to abuse of the procedure for political purposes had been 
met by a provision that the right might be exercised, not 
by individual Member States, but only by a group of 
States, constituting a majority of the screening com-
mittee set up under paragraph 4 of article 11. 
13. Criticism of the screening committee had been 
voiced on the grounds that it would bring political in-
fluence to bear in what should be a purely judicial pro-
cedure; he would point out, however, that one of the 

main purposes of that committee was to reduce the pos~ 
sibility of political influer .. ce while allowing Member 
States the right to initiate review. Moreover, the func-
tion of the screening committee was very limited: its 
task was to decide only whether the application for re-
view fulfilled the conditions laid down in paragraph 1 
of the proposed article 11 ; thereafter it had no further 
discretion. The suggestion ::hat the need for a screening 
committee might be eliminated by conferring upon the 
Secretary-General the right to ask the Court for an advi-
sory opinion was, in his ddegation's view, unacceptable, 
for it would subject the Secretary-General to undesir-
able political pressure. Fmthermore, it had been in-
tended that the screening committee should fill, in the 
case of the U nitecl Nations, the role filled in that of the 
specialized agencies by the Governing Body or Execu-
tive Board. 
14. Paragraph 4 of the proposed article 11 provided 
that the screening committee should be composed of the 
Member States whose representatives had served on 
the General Committee at the most recent regular ses-
sion of the General Assembly. The Special Committee 
had considered other methods of composition, in parti-
cular the suggestion that it should consist of individual 
experts and not of Member States. As experienee had 
shown, hmvever, committees of experts were difficult 
and expensive to convene and they could not be expected 
to deal \Vith applications for review as promptly and 
expeditiously as was desirable. The Special Committee 
had consequently concluded that it would be better for 
the screening committee to consist of Member States, 
but States were naturally 1 o be recommended to send 
qualified experts as their representatives on that com-
mittee. 
15. Paragraph 3 of the proposed new article 11 dealt 
with the question of the fi:1ality of judgements. H no 
application for review were made within the time-·limit 
laid dcnvn in paragraph 1 of the article, the judgement 
of the A(lministrative Tribunal became final. The Tri-
bunal's judgement also became final if an application for 
revie\v were made within 1he period specified but the 
screening committee decidec:. not to request an advisory 
opinion or failed to reach a decision within 30 days of 
the application. If, however, the screening committee de-
cided to request an advisory opinion of the Court, effect 
must be given to the Court's opinion, either immediately 
or, where necessary, througb the reconvening of the Tri-
bunal in order that it might confirm its original judge-
ment or give a new judgement, in conformity with the 
opinion of the Court. The general intention of the pro-
visions in that paragraph was to reduce to a minimum 
the inconvenience and hardship caused to staff members 
by the delay in reaching finality which was necessarily 
entailed by any review proctdure. 
16. Paragraph 5 of the proposed article 11 dealt with 
the problem of the status of .i udgements of the Adminis-
trative Tribunal. The practical question involved was 
whether or not compensatio•1 awarded by the Tribunal 
should be paid before the l nternational Court of Jus-
tice had given its opinion. In order that the staff member 
concerned should not be handicapped in protecting his 
interests, paragraph 5 provi:lecl that he might, on cer-
tain conditions, be given an <idvance payment amounting 
to one-third of the total amollnt of compensation award-
eel him by the Tribunal. 
17. The new article 12 recommended by the Special 
Committee for inclusion in the Statute of the Adminis-
trative Tribunal provided for the revision of judgements 



493rd meeting- 17 October 1955 37 
and the correction of errors by the Tribunal itself in cer-
tain circumstances. It was based on Article 61 ( 1) of the 
Statute of the International Court and simply conferred, 
expressly, a power of revision which the Tribunal pos-
sessed inherently. 
18. On the basis of those considerations, he would urge 
the Fifth Committee to adopt the Special Committee's 
proposals as a satisfactory solution of a difficult and 
intricate problem. 
19. :rvTr. DONS (Norway) recalled that at the ninth 
session of the General Assembly his delegation had in 
the Fifth Committee ( 479th and 480th meetings) op-
posed the establishment of a procedure for review of 
judgements uf the United Nations Administrative Tri-
bunal but in the 515th plenary meeting had voted in 
favour of resolution 888 (IX). In regard to part B of 
that resolution, it had questioned the wisdom of accept-
ing in principle judicial review before the question had 
been studied much more thoroughly than had seemed 
possible at the ninth session and had made it clear that 
it would not consider itself bound by such acceptance in 
any future discussion of the problem. 
20. It was a matter of regret to the Norwegian dele-
gation that the majority of the Special Committee set up 
under the resolution had shared the view expressed by 
the United States representative on that Committee that 
the question of the necessity or advisability of estab-
lishing a review procedure had been finally settled by the 
General Assembly and that the Special Committee was 
bound to limit its study to ways and means of applying 
the principle of judicial revie\v. The Norwegian and a 
few other delegations on the Special Committee had been 
of the opinion that the General Assembly had not given 
it imperative terms of reference and that the possibi-
lity of its work resulting in a negative conclusion should 
not be ruled out. They had dravvn attention to the fact 
that the Special Committee had been called upon to 
;-;tucly the question in all it-; aspects and had expressed 
the view that the advisability of establishing a review 
procedure could be discussed in considering general 
principles. In point of fact, some members of the Special 
Committee hacl raised that question in their statements 
and several had opposed the establishment of any review 
procedure. 
21. It would he noted from the Special Committee',; 
report that no proposal regarding a review procedure 
had received more than half the votes cast and that the 
Special Committee's recommendations had been adopted 
by 9 votes to 4, with 4 abstentions, one member being 
unrepresented. That vote would seem to justify the pro-
posal made by the N onveg1an representative on the Spe-
cial Committee that no vote should be taken on anv of 
the proposals submitted but that all the texts should be 
annexed to the report, which should represent a com-
plete. faithful and objective picture of the work done. 
The adoption of that proposal would have obviated the 
crytallization of the positions of delegations before they 
had had an opportunity of studying the matter fully and 
of acquainting themselves with the views of other Mem-
ber States. As it was, the Fifth Committee had before 
it a controversial proposal. together with the comments 
of a small number of Member States ( A/2917 and 
Adcl.l and 2) not represented on the Special Commit-
tee. In the opinion of the Norwegian delegation, that 
~ituatiou ealled for extensive discussion of the whole 
matter in the Fifth Committee, including the question 
of the necessitY ur ;vlvisahility of establishing any rt-
view procedttrt. 

22. It was the considered view of the Norwegian Gov-
ernment that it was unnecessary and even unwise at the 
present time to establish any procedure for judicial re-
view of judgements of the Administrative Tribunal, for 
the following reasons: 
23. First, the establishment of such a procedure had 
not been requested either by the staff or by the Secre-
tary-General, the two parties to any dispute coming be-
fore the Administrative Tribunal. 
24. Second, the question of an appeals procedure had 
been discussed at the time of the establishment of the 
Administrative Tribunal, but no further action had been 
taken in the matter because the Advisory Committee 
had feared an adverse effect on staff morale if appeals 
beyond the Administrative Tribunal were to delay the 
final decision in cases already heard by organs set up 
for that purpose within the Secretariat. 2 It was rele-
vant in that connexion that the judgements of the Lea-
gue of Nations Administrative Tribunal had been final 
and without appeal. 
25. Third, a case affecting a staff member might al-
ready have gone through several stages of review even 
before reaching the Administrative Tribunal. 
26. Fourth, the review procedure would involve addi-
tional expense for both the Organization and the staff 
member and would result, for the latter, in loss of time 
and uncertainty regarding the future. 
27. Fifth, the Special Committee's studies had shown 
that the establishment of any review procedure would 
involve constitutional and practical difficulties entirely 
disproportionate to the benef1ts which might be derived. 
28. Sixth, the establishment of a review procedun:: 
1\'0ttld have the effect of impairing the prestige of the 
A.dministrati ve Tribunal. 
29. Se\'l~nth, the experience of other international or-
ganizations showed that little or no use was being made 
of review facilities and it therefore seemed superfluous 
to make elaborate provision to meet a contingency that 
would seldom or never arise. 
30. Eighth, in the final analysis, the effect of a suc:cess-
ful appeal against a judgement would be to deprive a 
staff member, in whole or in part, of the benefits of a 
compensation a \vard in his favour, thus reducing the 
problem to the question of the sum to be paid from the 
United ~ations budget, a relatively unimportant con-
sideration, where the interests of the Organization or of 
some Member States were weighed against all the argu-
ments militating against the establishment of a review 
procedure. 
31. \\:nile the Norwegian delegation was opposed to 
the establishment of a review procedure in respect of 
judgements of the Administrative Tribunal and would 
therefore vote against the Special Committee's recom-
mendations, it wished to make clear that it was not op-
posed to appeals procedures in principle, \Yhich it recog-
nized hacl their rightful place in any system of law and 
justice. It could not, however, support a review proce-
dure which did not comply with certain basic princi-
ples, uamely, being truly judicial in character, giving 
both parties and both parties alone an equal opportunity 
to request a review, and safeguarding the principle of 
equality before the review body. Even a superficial exa-
mination of the Special Committee's recommendations 
indicated that the system proposed violated the princi-
ples oa which the concept of judicial review was based. 

2 Sec Official Records of the General Assembly, Stcm~<l part 
u/ first session, Fifth Committee, 25th meeting. 



38 General Assembly- Tenth Session- Fifth Committee 

In its advisory opinion, a the International ~ourt of Ju~- cerned might be appointed on the basis of their personal 
tice had indicated that a procedure for revtew of Admt- ability and legal competence, there was no guarantee 
nistrative Tribunal judgements must be judicial and th~t that that would be so. A further objection to the pro-
principle had been accepted by the Ge~eral Assei?bly m posed composition of the screening committee was that 
resolution 888 B (IX). The N orwegtan delegatwn felt there would be no continuity of membership except in 
doubly justified in voting against the Special Commit- the case of the permanent: members of the Sec:urity 
tee's proposal for a new article 11 in the Statute of the Council. 
Administrative Tribunal and was sure that many dele- 35. It should be pointed out, furthermore, that the 
gations which might be inclined to recognize the need terms of reference of the screening committee as set out 
for a review procedure would hesitate to approve the in paragraph 2 of the new article 11 proposed by the 
Special Committee's recommendations for the very rea- Special Committee were ambiguous. According to that 
son that they were not in conformity with the wishes paragraph, the committee \vas to decide whether or not 
expressed by the General Assembly. there was a substantial ba.sis for the application for 
32. One of Norway's main objections to the Special review. The United Kingdom representative in the 
Committee's recommendations was that they departed Special Committee had said that, if the committee found 
from the principle governing appeals by according to a there was a genuine application within the grounds 
third party, i.e., to any Member State, the right to re- specified, it would be under an obligation to request an 
quest the review of a judgement. It had been argued advisory opinion. The Cauadian representative, how-
that, since the final decision on acceptance of a Member ever, who had supported H,.e proposal as a whole, had 
State's application for a review was to be taken by a been unable to accept paragraph 2 because of the inclu-
screening committee, it would not be the Member State sion of the word "substanti;,J'', which, in the opinion of 
which would be requesting a review but a committee of his Government, conferred a wider discretion upon the 
the Organization, and the Organization would be one of screening committee than was consistent with the exer-
the parties to the original proceedings. It was clear, cise of its functions in a completely judicial manner. 
however from paragraph 76 of the Special Committee's 36. Another serious defect of the system proposed by 
report that, although the prol?osed .committe~ would. in the Special Committee was its failure to ensure equality 
theory be a screening committee, tt would 111 practice between the parties to the review procedure. The provi-
serve as a smoke-screen to conceal the fact that Member sion in paragraph 1 of the proposed new article 11 for 
States had been given the right to request the review review on the ground that the Tribunal had exceeded its 
of judgements in contravention of the principles gov- jurisdiction was apparently based on article 12 of the 
erning judicial review. Statute of the ILO Administrative Tribunal, which 
33. A further defect in the system recommended by the provided for review of a decision of the Tribunal con-
Special Committee was that it introduced a political ele- firming its jurisdiction. No ~=xception could be taken to 
ment into what should be a strictly judicial procedure. the inclusion of such a pro,rision in the Statute of the 
The Norwegian delegation maintained that staff mem- ILO Administrative Tribuml, since only the Governing 
bers could be relied upon to act in their own interests, Body of that agency could initiate a review. Its intra-
and the Secretary-General to ad in those of the Organi- duction into the system in force in the United Nations, 
zation as a whole. Since a Member State could not act however, would create inequality between the parties, 
for the Organization as a whole, there was no interest since in practice a staff member would mainly be 
in the proceedings before the Tribunal which would pro- interested in challenging a decision refusing to accept 
perly be represented by a Member State. Intervention jurisdiction, while the other party would be mainly 
by the latter would seem to imply a lack of confidence interested in challenging a decision \vhich, in its view. 
in the Secretarv-General and would tend to impair his wrongly confirmed the Trib,mal's jurisdiction. 
prestige. If a Member State considered that a particular 
case raised issues affecting the interests of the Organi-
zation as a whole, it could draw those issues to the 
attention of the Secretary-General, who could be relied 
upon to take whatever action he considered appropriate 
within the framework of a genuinely judicial review 
procedure. For that reason, Norway agreed with the 
view expressed in the Special Committee by the repre-
sentatives of Brazil and Iraq that, if Member States 
were not considered interested parties, a review of 
judgements would be superfluous, since it had not been 
sought by the Secretary-General or the staff. 
34. A political element had also been introduced into 
the review procedure by the Special Committee's recom-· 
mendation regarding the composition of the screening 
committee. Since its composition would correspond to 
that of the General Committee of the General Assemblv, 
which was primarily determined by political consider~
tions, the screening committee would have a political 
rather than a judicial character, despite the fact that its 
functions would be essentially judicial. vVhile it was 
possible that the representatives of the countries co11-

S See Effect of mC'!trds of comPet~.satiolt ffl<ldl' h_v the United 
Natio11s Admi11istrati·ue Tribu11al, Advisory Opinion of July 
13th, 195~: I.C.]. Reporb 1954, p. 47. 

37. The screening committee procedure proposed 
would also make for inequali·;y, since in practice it would 
be much more difficult for a staff member requesting a 
review to convince the committee that there was a 
substantial basis for his appEcation than it would be for 
a Member State. The latter might even be represented 
on the committee, while no provision was made for the 
participation of staff members in its proceedings. 

38. Even more serious was the fact that a staff member 
would not have the same rights of representation before 
the International Court of Justice as Member States or 
the Secretary-General. \\'hile the Special Committee's 
recommendations provided :"or the submission to the 
Court of a written statement of the ,·ie\\·s L•f sbff mem-
bers.. they did uot provide f::>r the participatiou of the 
latter iu oral proceedings. . \ member of the Special 
Committee had suggested that the General Assembly 
might consider the possihilit v of adopting a resolution 
expressing the hope that 1\fember States and the Sect·e-
tary-General would not exer :ise their rights before the 
Court in a manner that ,,,ould take undue advantage of 
a staff member. Tn the opinio:1 of the Norwegian delega-
tion, however, a genuinely judicial review procedure 
could not he based on a hop(~ expressed in a resolution 



493rd meeting- 17 October 1955 39 

~hat the other party, whoever he might be, would behave 
m a proper manner. 
39. Other defects of the Special Committee's recom-
mendations were the imprecise drafting of paragraph 1 
of article II dealing with the grounds for review, which 
had been given different interpretations in that Com-
mittee, and the broad scope of the review proposed 
which was seemingly at variance with the statement in 
paragraph 19 of its report that "the members of the 
Committee were in general agreement that review should 
be limited to exceptional cases". 
40. The report left one fundamental question open: 
namely, whether the International Court of Justice 
would be able and willing to act in an advisory capacity 
under the procedure proposed in the joint draft resolu-
tion (AjC.SjL.335 and Add.l), which, in the view of 
the Norwegian and many other delegations, was at 
variance with the principles of a genuinely judicial 
review. Although the opinion of the Court and that of 
the majority of the Fifth Committee and of the General 
Assembly were not yet known, the Staff Council had 
stated, both in the Special Committee and again in docu-
ment AjC.Sj634, that the review procedure proposed in 
the Special Committee's recommendation could not pro-
perly be termed a "judicial review" within the meaning 
of General Assembly resolution 888 B (IX). The 
Norwegian delegation considered that full weight should 
be given to the views expressed by one of the parties 
concerned with regard to that point. 
41. For the reasons he had given, the Norwegian 
delegation would vote against the Special Committee's 
proposal for a new article 11 in the Statute of the 
Administrative Tribunal of the United Nations and, 
consequently, against the main part of the joint draft 
resolution. 
-1-2. Mr. BLANCO (Cuba) said that, as his country's 
representative on the Special Committee, he wished to 
comment on that Committee's recommendations as 
embodied in the joint draft resolution, of which his 
delegation was a sponsor. 
43. The principle of judicial review of Administrative 
Tribunal judgements had been accepted by the General 
Assembly in resolution 888 B (IX), which had provided 
the starting point for the Special Committee's work. The 
latter had therefore made a careful study of all the 
existing possibilities and of all the suggestions put 
forward. All schools of thought had been represented 
in it, from those opposed to review, and hence to the 
institution of a review procedure, to those in favour of 
setting up an entirely new appeals tribunal. Both the 
Secretary-General and the Staff Council had had an 
opportunity of presenting their views. 
44. In accepting the principle of judicial review, the 
Assembly had implicitly asserted the need to establish 
a procedure de:;igned to preclude any repetition of tht: 
difftculties experienced three years earlier in connexion 
with the implementation of certain Administrative 
T1ibunal judgements. Such a procedure was not new; 
provision for it was made in article 12 of the Statute of 
the ILO Administrative Tribunal which had been 
accepted oy five other specialized agencies. The action 
taken by the General Assembly at its ninth session was 
therefore in conformity with the practice adopted by 
the majority of the organizations in the United Nations 
family. The fact that so experienced an organization as 
the ILO had considered it necessary to provide for a 
review procedure suggested that the adoption of a 

similar procedure by the United Nations might be a 
means of avoiding a repetition of the difficulties pre-
viously experienced. It was a significant fact that the 
ILO procedure had never been used, an indication that 
it had had a salutary preventive effect. 
45. In accordance vvith the recommendation made in 
the working paper the Secretary-General had submitted 
to it (A/AC.78jL.1), the Special Committee had con-
sidered the three following basic questions: the scope 
of the review, the reviewing body, and the initiation of 
the review. 
46. \Vhere the first of those questions was concerned, 
divergent views had been expressed on whether the 
scope of the review should be limited to the two grounds 
referred to in article 12 of the Statute of the ILO 
Administrative Tribunal or whether it should be ex-
tended to all important legal questions. The Special 
Committee had adopted a compromise solution, under 
which a review could be requested on three grounds 
only: that the Tribunal had exceeded its jurisdictional 
competence, had erred on questions of law relating to 
the Charter, or had committed a fundamental error in 
procedure. The second of those grounds did not figure 
in article 12 of the Statute of the ILO Administrative 
Tribunal, but its inclusion had been considered neces-
sary in order to provide for cases in which the Tribunal's 
interpretation of the Charter might be challenged or in 
which it might be alleged to have interpreted the Staff 
Regulations in a manner inconsistent with Chapter XV 
of the Charter. In the opinion of the Cuban delegation, 
the introduction of that second ground represented an 
improvement on article 12 of the Statute of the ILO 
Administrative Tribunal. 
47. \Vhere the reviewing body was concerned, after 
considering various possibilities the majority of the 
Special Committee had agreed that the reviewing body 
should be the International Court of Justice, acting in 
its advisory capacity, as provided in article 12 of the 
Statute of the ILO Administrative Tribunal. In view 
of the fact that judicial review of judgements was 
intended to be an exceptional procedure, it seemed 
neither necessary nor economically justifiable to set up 
new machinery for appeals. 
48. \Vith regard to the third question, namely, who 
should have the right to initiate a review, it was obvious 
that the Secretary-General and the staff member con-
cerned should have that right. The Special Committee 
had felt that it should belong also to Member States, 
which had legitimate interests to protect. Taking article 
12 of the Statute of the ILO Administrative Tribunal 
as its example, the Special Committee had decided to 
recommend the setting up of a General Assembly com-
mittee which would screen applications for review. 
Judicial rrview would thus be reserved for exceptional 
case:.; only. Such a committee, with the composition 
~uggesteJ by the Special Committee, vvould, it was felt, 
be ;tdequately representative, geographically and other-
\1-i~e. It,; fttnctions would be strictly limited and it would 
itself haYe no power of review since, like the Governing 
Body ur Executive Board in the case of the ILO proce-
dure, it would simply be required to decide whether an 
application for review was admissible under the terms 
of paragraph 1 of article 11. 
49. It had been objected that such a screening com-
mittee \Yould be political and not technical in character 
and that that would detract from the judicial nature of 
the review. If, however, the committee were to consist 
of legal experts. then it would be virtually unnecessary 



40 General Assembly- Tenth Session- Fifth Committee 

to seek the opinion of the International Court of Justice. 
The committee had been suggested precisely because, 
unlike the specialized agencies, the United Nations did 
not possess a governing body or an executive board. Its 
establishment could not in any way detract from the 
judicial nature of the review itself, which would be 
carried out by the International Court of Justice. 
50. For those reasons, his delegation would support 
the recommendations of the Special Committee and the 
eight-Power draft resolution. The recommendations, in 
its view, represented the best compromise which could 
be reached on the matter and if adopted would constitute 
a definite step forward in the international adminis-
trative legislation of the United Nations. True, the 
procedure recommended was not strictly in accordance 
with the norms of domestic legislation, on which inter-
national law was generally founded, but that was not 
always possible in present-day conditions. In any case, 
the United Nations should follow the example set by 
the International Labour Organisation in the Statute 
of its Administrative Tribunal; the rights both of the 
Organization and of :i\fember States would thereby he 
guaranteed. 
51. lYir. GREZ (Chile) recalled tho.t at the General 
Assembly's ninth session the Chilean representative in 
the Fifth Committee ( 477th meeting) had supported in 
principle the setting up of a procedure for reviewing the 
judgements of the Cuitecl Nrttions Administrative 
Tribunal. 
52. In accordance with General As:;embly resolution 
8&S B (IX), the Chilectn Government had, in a note 
~Jerbale dated 3 June 1955 (A/2917), supported the 
opinion expressed by itil representatiye at the General 
Assembly's ninth session th2,.t the review l'rocedure 
envisaged should l1e of a strictly judicial nature. 
53. While his delegation fully supported the Special 
Committee's recommendations. it felt that, as they con-
cerned questions of an essentially juridical nature, they 
should be submitted to the Sixth Committee for its 
opinion, in accordance \rith General Assembly resolution 
684 (VII) on methods and procedures of the General 
Assembly for dealing with legal and drafting questions. 
54. Mr. McCANN (Canada) said that his delegation 
had supported General Assembly resolution 888 B (IX), 
which accepted in principle' a jmlicial review of the 
judgements of the United :\ atiom Administrative 
Tribunal. 
55. After referring to the principal questions dealt with 
by the Special Committee, he briefly reviewed that Com-
mittee's recommendations and the new articles 11 and 
12 which it had suggested for the Statute of the Admin-
istrative Tribunal and which had been supported by the 
Canadian member of the Special Committee. 
56. A precedent for the review procedure suggested 
already existed in that provided by the Statute of the 
ILO Administrative Tribunal, \vhich was applied also 
by several other specialized agencies. 
57. The Canadian delegation considered that the Inter-
national Court oi Justice would be the most appropriate 
review organ, because of its unrivalled ability and 
prestige and because the procedure under which United 
Nations organs might request advisory opinions could 
be adapted to the review of judgements of the Adminis-
trative Tribunal of the United Nations, as had alreadv 
been done in the case of the ILO Administrative 
Tribunal. His delegation wai confident that a procedure 
oould be devised which would ensure that a staff mem-

ber who could not submit his arguments orally to the 
International Court would not be placed at a dis-
advantage. 
58. Member States had a legitimate interest in the 
affairs of the United Nations Secretariat and they, the 
Secretary-General and the staff member, should be given 
the opportunity of initiat1ng review procedure. His 
delegation considered, however, that provision should 
he made for the screening of requests for review by a 
competent body, so as to Ensure that the International 
Court was not burdened with requests for advisory 
opinions which did not come within the scope of review. 
59. The Canadian delegation agreed to the type of 
screening committee proposed in the Special Com-
mittee's report, on the understanding that the discretion 
of that body would be strictly limited to ascertaining 
whether the grounds on wbich the application was sub-
mitted were genuine and within the specified scope of 
review. Since such exercise of discretion would involve 
the application of judicial principles, his delegation hoped 
that the members of the committee would be jurists and 
that it would operate as a 'luasi-judicial organ and not 
as a political body. That w1s the manner in which his 
delegation hoped that the Special Committee's recom-
memlations and the joint draft resolution before the 
Fifth Committee would b<! interpreted and put into 
effect. 
60. His delegation was particularly pleased with the 
recommendation that :Member States and the Secretary-
Gemral should not make oral statements before the 
International Conrt of ] ustice in proceedings under the 
propased new article 11 of the Statute of the Adminis-
trative Tribuml. That mea:;ure had been suggested by 
the Canadian representativt: on the Special Committee 
in order to help to ensure that Member States and the 
Secretary-General would m•t he afforded an advantage 
over a ~taff member. 
61. Mr. EL MESSlRI (Egypt) recalled that at the 
General Assembly's ninth cession the Egyptian repre-
sentatiYe in the Fifth Committee (477th meeting) had 
stated that if the Statute of ilhe Administrative Tribunal 
was to be amended any changes contemplated should be 
made in accordance with the predominant principles of 
law and in conformity with ::he provisions generally laid 
clown in statutes of judicial bodies. 
62. Paragraph 1 of the ptoposed new article 11 per-
mitted a ~!Iember State to apply for review of a judge-
ment. The advisory opinion given by the International 
Court of Justice on 13 July 1954 had, however, left no 
doubt that a Member State could not be a party to a 
dispute between the United ::'Jations and a staff member. 
That was clear, inasmuch as disputes concerning con-
tracts of employment in the United Nations Secretariat 
did not affect the interests of Member States. 
63. The Secretary-Generai, in his legal capacity as 
representative of the Unit.!d Nations, and the ··staff 
member concerned were the only parties to judge 
whether the Tribunal had <:xceeded its jnrisdiction or 
competence, had erred on a question of law relating to 
the provisions of the Chater, or had committed a funda-
mental error in procedure. According to the procedure 
proposed by the Special Committee, however, a Member 
State could initiate review pmcedure, eveu if the Secre-
tary-General had not objected to the Administrative 
Tribu11al's judgement. Tha1 would be a direct inter-
Yention in the responsibilitits of the Secretary-General 
a:;; laid down in Article 100 •)f the Charter. That article 
wa~ a clear expression of the long-established prindple 



493rd meeting - 11 October· 1955 41 

of "separation and independence of authority"; the proposed committee would have to consider arguments 
power of that principle, which restricted intervention and evidence and the case under consideration would 
by one authority in the jurisdiction of another, was the have to be reopened before the 15 members of that body 
main safeguard and solid base on which national and acting under instructions from their various Govern-
international organs had been founded. In the interest, ments. That would make the proposed committee a sort 
therefore, of the United Nations and of all its Members, of super-political-administrative tribunal which in view 
it should be a guiding factor in the present debate. of it:- composition would not be competent to ac:t in 
64. The Special Committee's report mentioned that a matters relating to contracts of employment of staff 
Member State might intervene in respect of a judgement members. Moreover, being an organ of the United 
of the Administrative Tribunal on the basis of questions Nations, it could not take any decision in cases to which 
relating to the provisions of the Charter, such as the United Nations \Yas a party. 
standards of efficiency and integrity, or in questions 69. In its advisory opinion of 13 July 1954, the Inter-
involving the staff member's duty to refrain from any national Court of Justice had stated that the Adminis-
action which might reflect on his position as an inter- trative Tribunal of the United Nations was in itself of 
national civil servant. There were, however, adequate an essentially judicial character and had indicated that 
administrative arrangements for dealing with such cases a procedure for the review of the Tribunal judgements 
before they reached the Administrative Tribunal; there should be equally judicial. Moreover, in its study of the 
were, for instance, the Review Board, the 1 oint Disci- matter before it the Fifth Committee was limited bv the 
plinary Committee, the Special Advisory Board and the express terms of General Assembly resolution 888 B 
Joint Appeals Board. all of which were calculated to (IX), which was confined to the study of judicial 
ensure compliance with Article 101 of the Charter. review. The procedure proposed in the Special Com-
Furthermore, the Administrative Tribunal itself, com- mittee's report could in no way be termed judicial and 
posed of members elected by the General Assembly, was the Egyptian delegation would therefore be unable to 
able to ensure that the provisions of the Charter and Yote in faynnr of the joint draft resolution in its present 
other regulations relating to staff members of the United form. 
Nations were observed. Finally, Articles 97 and 100 70. l\Ir. 1\lAU RTL!A (Peru) pointed out that General 
of the Charter left no legal ground for intervention by Assembly resolution fJ&t (VII) provided that when a 
a Member State, and any such intervention in connexion Committee considered the legal aspects of a question 
with Article 101 contravened Article 100. Paragraph 1 important, the Committee should refer it for legal advice 
of the proposed new article 11 of the Administrative to the Sixth Committee or propose that the question 
Tribunal's Statute obviously contravened Article 100. should be cousidrred by a joint Committee of itself and 
65. Under paragraph 2 of the ne\Y article 11 the power the Sixth Committee. As the recommendations in the 
to decide legal matters was given to a committee whose proposed new articles 11 and 12 of the Statute of the 
members were not required to be jurists. It was obvious Unitecl ::-Jatiuus Administrative Tribunal obviously 
that such a committee could not perform judicial func- raised important legal questions, he hoped that the Fifth 
tions. As the records of the General Assembly's ninth Committee wottl(l support the Chilean representative's 
session would show, the majority of the members of the proposal that the new articles should be referred to the 
Fifth Committee had considered that any review proce- Sixth Committee for an opinion. 
dure established should be truly judicial. The fact that 71. ":vir. CARRIZOSA (Colombia) said that the 
the Administrative Tribunal itself, which had the various debates on the review· of Administrative Tribunal 
elements of an independent judicial body, was not judgements had drawn the General Assembly's attention 
entrusted with the reviewing procedure was all the more to the gaps which existed in the procedure set up by 
reason why the proposed committee- a political body the Statute of that Tribunal to settle disputes between 
with no special judicial background- should not be the Secretary-General and members of the Secretariat. 
entrusted with the power to override the Tribunal's Discussions at the General Assembly's ninth session had 
decisions. shown clearly that the majority of Member States were 
66. Under paragraph 3 of the new article 11, the in favour of the introduction of a review procedure and 
Administrative Tribunal could be requested to convene that until such a procedure had been set up the decisions 
specially in order to confirm its original judgement or of the Tribunal were without appeal. 
give a new judgement in conformity with the opinion of 72. The amendments the Special Committee had pro-
the International Court of Justice. An organ which posed to the Administrative Tribunal's Statute appeared 
merely adopted decisions given by another body could to meet the purpose which the General Assembly had 
not be regarded as a tribunal, especially a tribunal of had in mind in setting up that Committee, though certain 
the world Organization, bearing a grave responsibility points might need slight modification. In the first place, 
towards staff members. General Assembly resolution 888 B (IX) provided that 
67. According to the general practice of review proce- any review of the Administrative Tribunal's judgements 
dures, a reviewing court seized with a given case could would have to he of a judicial nature and in his delega-
itself pass final judgement or refer the case back to the tion's opinion it was doubtful whether Member States 
lower court for a new judgement. It was not customary, could request such a review. Secondly, the scope of the 
nor was it legal, for review judgements to be issued judicial review proposed would have to be carefully 
after an advisory opinion had been given. considered. It was obvious that such a review would by 
68. Paragraph 4 of the new article 11 established a its very nature take place in exceptional cases only; 
committee to be composed of Member States whose hence the screening procedure proposed in the Special 
representatives had served on the General Committee at Committee's recommendations would be of great signi-
the most recent session of the General Assembly. He ficance. He wondered whether it was wise to enumerate 
would point out that a reviewing body should have the cases to which such a review might be applied; it 
stability if its decisions were to be consistent and that might perhaps be advisable for the first sentence of the 
it should be completely free from political influence. The proposed new article 11 to be amended in that respect, 



General Assembly - 'l'enth Session - Fifth Committee 

73. Subject to a detailed examination by the Fifth 
Committee of the question whether a Memb~r State 
should have the right to request a review of the Admin-
istrative Tribunal's decision, and to complete freedom 
of action being left to the proposed screening committee, 
his delegation would vote in favour of the new draft 

Printed in Canada 

articles. It would give careful consideration to any 
amendments that might be submitted with a view to 
removing from article 11 the defects to which he had 
r!rawn attention. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

Q--77501-November 1955-1,875 




